
STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING
ROOM 113 - BILL LUXFORD STUDIO

THURSDAY, JUNE 9, 2016
8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Roma Amundson, Chair
Todd Wiltgen, Vice Chair
Larry Hudkins 
Deb Schorr
Bill Avery

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on June 8, 2016.

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at 8:32
a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MAY 26, 2016 STAFF MEETING
MINUTES

MOTION: Schorr moved and Wiltgen seconded approval of the May 26, 2016 Staff
Meeting minutes.  Wiltgen, Schorr, Amundson, Avery and Hudkins voted
aye.  Motion carried 5-0. 

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Presentation on Southeast Community College (SCC) Bond Issue 
B. Aging Partners Areawide Advisory Council Appointment (Exhibit A)
C. Report on Chamber Coffee

Page 1 BOC/STAFF/06/09/2016



MOTION: Hudkins moved and Wiltgen seconded approval of the additions to the
agenda.  Schorr, Hudkins, Wiltgen, Avery and Amundson voted aye. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

 3 A) LEGISLATIVE SERVICES CONTRACT WITH KISSEL/E&S
ASSOCIATES; B) LEGISLATIVE REVIEWS; C) COMMUNICATION
WITH NEW LANCASTER COUNTY SENATORS; AND D) MEETING
WITH NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES LEADERSHIP - Gordon Kissel, Jonathon Bradford and Joe
Kohout, Kissel/E&S Associates (Legislative Consultants)

A) Legislative Services Contract with Kissel/E&S Associates

Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S Associates, presented a request to renew the legislative services
contract , noting a 5% increase which would bring their fee to approximately $63,000 a
year (Exhibit B).  Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer, noted the two-year contract
is intended to coincide with the legislative cycle.

Schorr felt the increase was justified when considering the firms work on behalf of the
County. 

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Wiltgen seconded to prepare a contract for action at
a regular County Board of Commissioners Meeting at the fee and terms
that were outlined.  Hudkins, Avery, Wiltgen and Amundson voted aye. 
Schorr abstained from voting.  Motion carried 4-0, with one abstention.

B) Legislative Reviews

Kohout presented a list of Interim Studies (Exhibit C).  He also provided an update on
the results of statewide legislative elections, noting five incumbents lost their primary
races.  Kohout said it is important to note that the “gas tax” was one of the significant
issues in those districts.  He said 29 of the 49 senators will have two years, or less, of
experience when the Legislature reconvenes in January, including eight of the
Lancaster County Senate Delegation.  Kohout discussed leadership races, noting
Senator Jim Smith, who had served a Chair of the Transportation and
Telecommunications Committee, announced he will not be seeking re-election to that
post, rather he is seeking the position of Chair of the Revenue Committee.  He said
Senator Smith is working on significant tax package to address both income and
property taxes and said Lancaster County will want to stay abreast of those
conversations.      

Kohout said another issue involves the Legislative Resolution (LR) 415 Task Force that
was impaneled to look at behavioral and mental health issues.  He said the Nebraska
Association of County Officials (NACO) had a conversation with Senator Kate Bolz, who

Page 2 BOC/STAFF/06/09/2016



chairs the Task Force, about how emergency systems work.  Kohout said the Task
Force will meet again on June 15th and said he believes the County’s role in the
emergency system will be discussed at that time.  He indicated plans to attend and said
he will notify the County Board if there is a need to act.

C) Communication with New Lancaster County Senators

Kohout suggested a basic “101 session” be held for Lancaster County Senate
Delegation candidates prior to the Legislative Retreat on August 25th to help them
understand County issues such as juvenile detention, corrections, health, fiscal, law
enforcement and roads).  Discussion took place regarding whether to offer more than
one session and the length of the session(s).  There were also suggestions to invite
current members of the Lancaster County delegation and to have one or two
Commissioners present to answer questions. 

D) Meeting with Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services
Leadership (DHHS)

Eagan noted the Board sent a letter in June, 2015 to Courtney Phillips, Chief Executive
Officer (CEO), Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) requesting
she, and members of her staff, to meet with the Board to discuss issues.  He said the
letter was followed by phone calls but no response was received.  Kohout asked if the
Board wanted to continue to pursue an attempt to meet with DHHS to discuss ongoing
issues such as eliminate the responsibilities of counties to pay DHHS rent (see Nebraska
Revised Statute §68-130) and Medicaid retroactive billings.  There was consensus to
contact Phillips again and try to schedule a meeting.

  4 VERA INSTITUTE OF JUSTICE PROJECT IN LANCASTER COUNTY -
Joe Kelly, County Attorney; Christopher Turner, Deputy County Attorney

Joe Kelly, County Attorney, said he became aware in 2012 of the VERA Institute of
Justice’s Prosecution and Racial Justice Program and the Lancaster County Attorney’s
Office became involved in the project in 2013.  NOTE: Lancaster County was the fourth
prosecutor’s office to participate in the project.  He said the purpose was to ascertain
whether prosecutors’ decisions were having a disproportionate effect on minority
populations.  The VERA Institute provided researchers and the County Attorney’s Office
contributed funding for the project through Drug Asset Forfeiture Funds.   

Christopher Turner, Deputy County Attorney, gave a PowerPoint presentation on the
study which utilized data from the County Attorney’s electronic case management
system, including attorney notes and correspondence between attorneys (Exhibit D). 
He said the researchers reviewed 17,000 cases over the period of 2010-2013, and

Page 3 BOC/STAFF/06/09/2016



decided to study two offense categories (drug and assault offenses).  There were 3,100
cases that fit into those categories.  

Avery exited the meeting at 9:17 a.m. and returned to the meeting at 9:20 a.m.

Turner said researchers studied key decision points, outcomes, and factors that could
influence decisions.  He said a few disparate outcomes were found for assault cases
likely to be dismissed, after controlling for other factors such as criminal history and
seriousness of offense (see Exhibit D).  

The Chair exited the meeting at 9:19 a.m. and the Vice Chair assumed direction of the
meeting.  The Chair returned to the meeting at 9:21 a.m. and resumed direction of the
meeting.

Turner said dismissals can be due to lack of evidence, noting it is frequently based on
uncooperative victims and witnesses.  He said their Community Advisory Group felt
building rapport with the victims and witnesses is key so the County Attorney’s Office is
looking at bringing in a victim witness advocate.  Kelly noted that could be funded with
Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) monies.

In response to a question from Wiltgen, Turner said the study only involved blacks
versus whites as there weren’t sufficient numbers as far as other ethnic groups for a
valid sample size.

 5 PERSONNEL MATTER (EXECUTIVE SESSION REQUESTED) - Pam
Dingman, County Engineer; Doug McDaniel, Lincoln-Lancaster County
Human Resources Director; Kristy Bauer, Deputy County Attorney

MOTION: Schorr moved and Hudkins seconded to enter Executive Session at 9:30
a.m. for the purpose of protecting the public interest with regards to
personnel matter. 

The maker of the motion and the seconder withdrew their motion.

MOTION: Schorr moved and Wiltgen seconded to enter Executive Session at 9:30
a.m. for the purpose of protecting the public interest and evaluation of
the job performance of a person to the extent it is necessary to prevent
needless injury to the reputation of that person unless that person
requests a public meeting.

The Chair restated the reason for the Board entering Executive Session.

Page 4 BOC/STAFF/06/09/2016



MOTION: Wiltgen moved and Avery seconded to exit Executive Session at 10:14
a.m.  Avery, Wiltgen, Schorr, Hudkins and Amundson voted aye.  Motion
carried 5-0.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

H. Sale of Vacated Right-of Way Near Hickman, Nebraska

Pam Dingman, County Engineer, appeared and said she was directed to negotiate with
Dennis Buel regarding right-of-way that had been vacated along South 54th Street,
north of the City of Hickman.  The right-of-way had been appraised at $116,000, based
on the highest and best use of the property.  She said she offered to use 2006 values
when the County paid $6,000 an acre for property south of the center line and $20,000
an acre for property north of the center line (approximately $17,800).  Dingman said
Buel stated his final offer is $5,000.  She said Buel is now requesting a driveway across
the County’s property which she will not approve.

C. Correspondence from Fraternal Order of Police (FOP), Lodge 32
Regarding Participation in Corrections Director Search Process

Doug McDaniel, Lincoln-Lancaster County Human Resources Director, appeared and
said he invited two representatives of Fraternal Order of Police (FOP), Lodge 32 to
meet with him to provide input into the Corrections Director profile and said their
response was provided via their legal counsel.  He said he would prefer to  talk to the
Board at another time about what further role the FOP will have in the selection. 
McDaniel said there could be others that could provide input into the selection process. 
He said Human Resources is ready to begin advertising and sourcing candidates and he
wanted to get the profile down.  McDaniel noted he received information from the
Board to the predictive index and would like to share that at some point as well.

There was consensus to have Eagan and McDaniel draft a response letter.  

 6 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT NO. 16002 AND COUNTY
CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 16011, AGRICULTURAL (AG) TO
AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL (AGR) AT SOUTH 82nd STREET AND
ROCA ROAD - David Cary, Lincoln/Lancaster County Planning
Department Director; Tom Cajka, Planner II

Tom Cajka, Planner II, gave an overview of Comprehensive Plan Amendment No.
16002, to amend the 2040 Lincoln-Lancaster County Comprehensive Plan by changing
the Future Land Use Plan designation from Agricultural to Low Density Residential, and
County Change of Zone No. 16011, to change zoning from Agricultural (AG) to
Agricultural Residential (AGR), on approximately 118 acres generally located at South

Page 5 BOC/STAFF/06/09/2016



82nd Street and Roca Road (Exhibit E).  He said the applicant has submitted a
preliminary plat with 32 lots, adding each lot is approximately three acres in size.
Planning staff and the Planning Commission have recommend approval of both the
comprehensive plan amendment and change of zone request.

Schorr noted two individuals testified in opposition at the Planning Commission’s public
hearing and asked Cajka to summarize their concerns.  Cajka said the primary concerns
were drainage runoff and soil erosion leading into Wagon Train Lake State Recreational
Area east of Hickman.  He added Nebraska Game and Parks did not have any concerns
with the project.

Avery asked whether there were any groundwater concerns.  Cajka said no, as any
future lots would be on rural water.  Cary said that is one reason this area is preferable
for this type of development.

 7 CRISIS CENTER CONSTRUCTION UPDATE - Scott Etherton, Crisis
Center Director; Don Killeen, County Property Manager; Chuck
Bachman and John Kay, Sinclair Hille & Associates, Inc. (Architects); Dan
Ridder, Hausmann Construction (Project Manager)

Copies of Mental Health Crisis Center Change Order Request Log, a breakdown of the
change orders by construction and owner requirements, and credits were disseminated
(Exhibits F and G).  It was noted that renovation of the Benesch Building (825 J Street)
to serve as the new location for the Mental Health Crisis Center is over budget by
$204,816.19 and overdue by 46 days.

Avery, Schorr and Wiltgen requested an explanation of the overages and delays.  John
Kay, Sinclair Hille & Associates Inc., said 1.3% of the change orders are owner initiated 
and 3.3% are construction related that are based on unforeseen conditions discovered
during demolition which include uneven floors, a leaking foundation wall and
deteriorated mortar joints and cracks.  He said this information was shared with the 
Public Building Commission (PBC) on a monthly basis. 

Schorr asked the amount of contingency set aside for the project.  Kay said no
contingency was allowed in the bidding documents.  Don Killeen, County Property
Manager, said the bids were for the completion amount and there is no contingency
involved.  Each change order must be approved. 

Avery asked whether the PBC approved all of the change orders.  Killeen said they did. 
Avery then asked there was ever a time where they thought it should be brought to the
County Board.  Schorr agreed it should have been brought to the Board.  Hudkins, who
serves on the PBC, questioned what they felt was so “alarming” about the increases,
noting many projects have a contingency of 8-10%.  He said all of the change orders
were reviewed and a number of change orders were denied.

Page 6 BOC/STAFF/06/09/2016



Hudkins asked Killeen and Kay whether they felt every change order requested was for
the benefit of the County.  Killeen and Kay both responded they did.  Killeen added the
subcontractors came back late in the project with additional floor leveling expense that
was denied.  

Dan Ridder, Hausmann Construction, said the “punch list” (a document prepared near
the end of a project listing work not conforming to contract specifications that the
contractor must complete prior to final payment) will be completed tomorrow but if the
additional changes requested by the owner are approved, it will delay final completion. 
Chuck Bachman, Sinclair Hille & Associates, Inc., explained that days assigned to those
changes are related to shipment dates.  He said the changes involve door hardware
and estimated shipping will take three to four weeks and another week to ten days to
get it installed.   The substantial completion date (ready for occupation in terms of
code) was May 6th.  Final completion date is set for June 10th.  It was noted the facility
must also be licensed by the Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services
(DHHS) and they will want the building to be in move-in condition. 

Scott Etherton, Crisis Center Director, discussed the issues involving the doors and
locksets.  He said they involve a risk for clients but would not prevent them from
occupying  the building.  Avery asked Etherton why he hadn’t identified the issues
earlier.  Etherton said some things that were discussed in the design process did not
get included in the bid for a variety of reasons.  He said some products that were
specified in the bid were found to not function for the intended purpose.  Bachman said
Etherton’s concerns regarding the door closers were not fully understood during the
design phase.

Hudkins requested an explanation of one of the pending approval items (change the
design of the drainage swale along the alley to utilize pervious concrete) (see Exhibit
F).
Bachman said it is related to a vandalism incident.  Killeen said he is not sure it is worth
the cost and would not recommend it at this point.

In response to a question from Amundson, Killeen said rent will be the $10.50 per
square foot which is the amount every department in the government campus is
charged.  He said proceeds from the sale of Community Mental Health Center (CMHC)
Building will be used to pay off a short term loan at Cornhusker Bank.

Wiltgen asked who will be responsible for the cost overruns.  Killeen said those costs
will be absorbed by all PBC tenants through rent over the next 20 years.

Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administration Officer, was asked to be present for the
DHHS inspection and Etherton was asked to provide an update at the June 16th Staff
Meeting.

Schorr exited the meeting at 11:16 a.m.

Page 7 BOC/STAFF/06/09/2016



 8 ACTION ITEMS

There were no action items.

 9 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Presentation on Southeast Community College (SCC) Bond Issue 

The Board scheduled the presentation on the June 16, 2016 County Board Staff
Meeting agenda.

B. Aging Partners Areawide Advisory Council Appointment (Exhibit A)

The Board scheduled discussion with Randy Jones, Aging Partners Director, on the June
23, 2016 Staff Meeting agenda.

10 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. County Website Committee Appointment

Appointment of Brent Meyer, Weed Superintendent, to the County Website Committee
was scheduled on the June 14, 2016 County Board of Commissioners Meeting agenda.

Schorr returned to the meeting at 11:20 a.m.

B. Prudential Request to Send Letter Under the County Board’s Name to
County Employees Regarding GuideSpark

Information regarding the GuideSpark program was disseminated (Exhibit H).

Board consensus was to approve the request.

C. Correspondence from Fraternal Order of Police (FOP), Lodge 32
Regarding Participation in Corrections Director Search Process

Item was moved forward on the agenda.

Page 8 BOC/STAFF/06/09/2016



D. National Association of County Officials (NACo) Voting Credentials

NOTE: The voting credentials are for the NACo Annual Conference in Long Beach,
California, July 22-25, 2016.  Commissioner Schorr will be attending on behalf of the
Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) and Commissioner Hudkins will be
attending with a registration provided by NACo at no cost to the County.

Schorr and Hudkins both requested voting credentials.

Eagan recommended the County verify whether Hudkins registration would qualify as a
paid registration, which is required for voting credentials.

There was consensus to hold the item.

E. Sale of Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Building 

NOTE:  David Cary, Lincoln/Lancaster County Planning Department Director; Tom
Cajka, Planner II; Don Killeen, County Property Manager; and David Derbin, Deputy
County Attorney, were present for the discussion. 

Wiltgen disseminated copies of the testimony he provided at the City Council’s public
hearing on June 6th regarding Change of Zone 16010 (Exhibit I).  

Eagan said, following the public hearing, he communicated that the Board is willing to
work with whatever restrictions the City Council is willing to put on the change of zone. 
He noted retail is one of Bryan Medical Center’s primary objections and said the
utilization of the building is what is of most importance to the County (see May 5, 2016
Staff Meeting minutes).  NOTE: B-3 (Commercial) zoning will allow the entire building
to be used for office space but O-2 (Office) will not.  Eagan said giving up retail would
be a huge concession.  Schorr expressed concern that limiting all retail would impact
uses such as the sale of durable medical equipment.   David Derbin, Deputy County
Attorney, said the opposition indicated they were okay with that kind of use.  He said
agreeing to eliminate what the opposition deems objectionable retail uses will take
away the force of their argument.  Those include adult entertainment, alcohol, tobacco,
guns and firearms.  Eagan said Bryan Medical Center is also concerned about a retail
pharmacy, such as Walgreens or Rite Aid going into that location.

Hudkins noted the former Sun Mart Grocery Store, which was adjacent to the property,
had B-3 zoning and asked whether that was brought up at the public hearing.  Wiltgen
said it was.

MOTION: Schorr moved and Wiltgen seconded to request B-3 zoning but restrict it
to O-2 uses.  Hudkins, Avery, Wiltgen, Schorr and Amundson voted aye. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

Page 9 BOC/STAFF/06/09/2016



Avery exited the meeting at 11:38 a.m.

F. Annual Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) Conference in
Kearney, Nebraska (December 14, 15 & 16, 2016)

All of the Commissioners indicated plans to attend.  

G. Lawson Park Phase II Dedication (June 22, 2016 in Waverly,
Nebraska) 

Wiltgen indicated plans to attend the event.

H. Sale of Vacated Right-of Way Near Hickman, Nebraska

Item was moved forward on the agenda.

I. Purchasing Contract Administrator Position 

Eagan said the position has been removed from the City’s budget.

11 PENDING

There were no pending items.

12 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Lincoln Independent Business Association (LIBA) Breakfast - Hudkins

Hudkins said LIBA members urged the County to “hold the line” on the tax levy and
only use the growth in valuation.

B. Meeting with Planning Department - Amundson/Wiltgen

Amundson and Wiltgen reported discussion on land uses, the process for Avalon Event
Paradise and Hillside Events, Comprehensive Plan Amendment No. 16002 and Change
of Zone No. 16011 at South 82nd Street and Roca Road, and update of the
Comprehensive Plan.

Hudkins asked that they discuss possible expansion and routing of Northwest 38th

Street at their next meeting.

Avery returned to the meeting at 11:45 a.m.

Page 10 BOC/STAFF/06/09/2016



C. Lancaster County Correctional Facility Joint Public Agency (JPA) -
Amundson/Wiltgen

Amundson and Wiltgen reported the JPA approved claims including the purchase of
new kitchen ovens.

D. Public Building Commission (PBC) Chair/Vice Chair Meeting with Mayor
- Amundson

Amundson said the discussed the State lease for the “K” Street Building.

E. Mental Health Crisis Center Advisory Board 

Meeting was cancelled.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

C. Report on Chamber Coffee

Amundson said a variety of issues were discussed including tourism, road construction,
the City’s storm water bond issue.

13 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

There were no emergency items or other business.

14 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Schorr moved and Wiltgen seconded to adjourn the meeting at 11:50
a.m.  Schorr, Hudkins, Avery, Wiltgen and Amundson voted aye.  Motion
carried 5-0.

_________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk

Page 11 BOC/STAFF/06/09/2016






















































































